

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO
NEVADA GAMING COMMISSION REGULATIONS
1, 1.155, 5.030, 5.040, 5.060, and 5.070

NEVADA GAMING CONTROL BOARD RECOMMENDED DRAFT

Dated: 01/14/2026

PURPOSE STATEMENT: Pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes (“NRS”) 463.145 and 463.150, to amend Nevada Gaming Commission (“NGC”) Regulations 1, 1.155, 5.030, 5.040, 5.060, and 5.070 to carry out the policies and provisions of Chapter 463 of NRS; To amend NGC Regulation 1 to add a definition of “registrant”; To amend NGC Regulation 1.155 to clarify the term “registration” applies to any registration of a person with the Nevada Gaming Control Board or Commission, other than a gaming employee registration, as required by the Gaming Control Act or the regulations adopted thereunder; To amend NGC Regulations 5.030, 5.040, 5.060, and 5.070 to specifically provide that the sections apply to any licensee, registrant, person found suitable by the Commission, and any agent or employee thereof; And to take such additional actions as may be necessary and proper to effectuate this stated purpose.

EFFECTIVE DATE: Upon adoption by the Nevada Gaming Commission.

EXPLANATION: Matter in *blue italics* is new language; matter between ~~red brackets with single strikethrough~~ is material to be omitted.

REGULATION 1
ISSUANCE OF REGULATIONS; CONSTRUCTION; DEFINITIONS

.....

1.153 “Registrant” defined.

1. Except as provided in subsection 2, “registrant” means a person registered with the Board or Commission pursuant to the Nevada Gaming Control Act or these regulations.

2. “Registrant” does not mean a person registered as a gaming employee unless context otherwise requires.

1.155 “Registration” defined.

1. ~~“Registration”~~ *Except as provided in subsection 2, “registration” means:*

(a) A final order of the Commission which authorizes a corporation, firm, partnership, limited partnership, association, limited liability company, trust, or other form of business organization not a natural person to be a holding company; or

(b) A registration of a person ~~[, including individuals,]~~ with the Board *or Commission pursuant to the Nevada Gaming Control Act or these regulations*.

2. “Registration” does not mean registered as a gaming employee unless context otherwise requires.

....

REGULATION 5 OPERATION OF GAMING ESTABLISHMENTS

....

5.030 Violation of law or regulations. Violation of any provision of the Nevada Gaming Control Act or of these regulations by a *registrant, licensee, ~~[the licensee’s]~~ or person found suitable by the Commission, or an agent or employee thereof,* shall be deemed contrary to the public health, safety, morals, good order and general welfare of the inhabitants of the State of Nevada and grounds for suspension or revocation of a *registration, license, or finding of suitability.* Acceptance of a *registration, state gaming license, or finding of suitability,* or renewal thereof ~~[by a licensee],~~ constitutes an agreement on the part of the *registrant, licensee, or person found suitable by the Commission* to be bound by all of the regulations of the Commission as the same now are or may hereafter be amended or promulgated. It is the responsibility of the *registrant, licensee, or person found suitable by the Commission* to keep informed of the content of all such regulations, and ignorance thereof will not excuse violations.

....

5.040 Investigation of conduct of ~~[licensees]~~ a *registrant, licensee, or person found suitable by the Commission* generally. A *registration, gaming license, or finding of suitability* is a revocable privilege, and no holder thereof shall be deemed to have acquired any vested rights therein or thereunder. The burden of proving his or her qualifications to hold any *registration, license, or finding of suitability* rests at all times on the *registrant, licensee, or person found suitable by the Commission.* The Board is charged by law with the duty of observing the conduct of all *registrants, licensees, and persons found suitable by the Commission* to the end that *registrations, licenses, and findings of suitability* shall not be held by unqualified or disqualified persons or unsuitable persons or persons whose operations are conducted in an unsuitable manner.

....

5.060 Access to premises and production of records.

1. No applicant, *registrant*, licensee, *person found suitable by the Commission*, or enrolled person shall neglect or refuse to produce records or evidence or to give information upon proper and lawful demand by a Board or Commission member or any agent of the Board, or shall otherwise interfere, or attempt to interfere, with any proper and lawful efforts by the Commission, the Board, or any agent to produce such information.

2. Each gaming licensee, licensed manufacturer, ~~and~~ licensed distributor, or *licensed* seller shall immediately make available for inspection by any Board or Commission member or agent all papers, books and records produced by any gaming business and all portions of the premises where gaming is conducted or where gambling devices or equipment are manufactured, sold, or distributed. Any Board or Commission member or agent shall be given immediate access to any portion of the premises of any gaming licensee, licensed manufacturer, ~~or~~, licensed distributor, or *licensed* seller for the purpose of inspecting or examining any records or documents required to be kept by such licensee under the provisions of NRS chapter 463 or the regulations of the Commission, and any gaming device or equipment or the conduct of any gaming activity.

3. Access to the areas and records which may be inspected or examined by Board members or agents shall be granted to any Board member or agent who displays a badge issued by the Board and an identification card signed by a Board member. Similar access shall be granted to any Commission member who displays an identification card signed by the governor.

5.070 Summoning of *registrant, licensee, or person found suitable by the Commission, or agent or employee thereof.* The Board may summon any *registrant, licensee, or person found suitable by the Commission*, or ~~the licensee's agents or employees~~ *an agent or employee thereof*, to appear to testify before it or its agents with regard to the conduct of any *registrant, licensee, or person found suitable by the Commission*, or ~~the agents or employees of any licensee~~ *any agent or employee thereof*. All such testimony shall be under oath and may embrace any matters which the Board or its agents may deem relevant to the discharge of its official duties. Any person so summoned to appear shall have the right to be represented by counsel. Any testimony so taken may be used by the Board as evidence in any proceeding or matter then before it or the Commission or which may later come before it or the Commission. Failure to so appear and testify fully at the time and place designated, unless excused, shall constitute grounds for the revocation or suspension of any

registration, license, or finding of suitability held by the person summoned, *or* his or her principal or employer.

.....